
 
 

Town of Damariscotta  
Select Board Meeting  

 
June 4, 2025 
Town Office 
21 School St 

5:30 PM 
 

Join Virtually 
 Meeting:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87460382770   

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Call Select Board Meeting to Order 
3. Minutes  

i. May 21, 2025 
4. Financial Reports  

i. Payroll Warrants #___ 
ii. Accounts Payable Warrants #___ 

5. Citizen Comments and General Correspondence 
i. Cemetery Maintenance 

6. Town Manager’s Report  
7. Official Action Items  

i. On-Premise Liquor License Renewal: Barn Door Baking Co 
ii. Qualified Catering Permit: NCS LLC 

iii. Entertainment License: Oysterhead Pizza 
iv. Midcoast Humane Society Shelter Agreement 
v. Surplus Equipment: Accept Float Bid Results 

vi. Efficiency Maine EV Grant 
8. Select Board’s Discussion Items 

i. FY 23 Financial Audit  
9. Adjournment 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87460382770


 
 

Town of Damariscotta  
Select Board Meeting  

 
May 21, 2025 

Damariscotta Fire Station 
 27 Massasoit Dr 

5:30 PM 
 

Join Virtually 
 Meeting:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87460382770   

 
MINUTES 

 
Attendance: Select Board: Daryl Fraser, Tom Anderson, Andrea Keushguerian, Dan Hunter 
Absent: Josh Pinkham 
Other: Andrew Dorr, Town Manager;  Micheal Martone, Town Planner; John Roberts, Fire Chief, Nora 
Conlyn, LCN 
 
 

I. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
II. Call Select Board Meeting to Order 

Fraser called the meeting to order at 5:32.  He thanked the fire house for hosting the 
meeting. 
 
1. Public Forum/Workshop 

i. Ladder Truck Inspection and Replacement Presentation 
 
Chief Roberts did a powerpoint presentation on Ladder Truck  4.  Highlights 
include a full description  of the “Quint”,  which is named this due to its 
multifunctionality.  It contains a pumper, water tank, hoses, 100 ft extension 
ladder and has aerial capabilities.  Purchased in 2006, it holds 500 gallons of 
water and can spay at 2000 gallons per minute.  It also holds several 
additional ladders.  Roberts went on to describe how its use is the safest way 
to do above ground service.  (Roof fires, chimney fires)  It is also extremely 
useful in areas like Downtown where buildings are close together and 
ambers can spread quickly.  The Fire Station has had a truck replacement 
plan in place, however, due to rising costs of replacing equipment, now over 
a 60% rise in costs.  Roberts and his committee propose, that because Engine 
#1 and Ladder #4 are only one year apart, Engine 1 would not be replaced 
and a new ladder truck would be acquired.  Costs range from 1.76-1.86 
million dollars.  It will take 30-40 months for delivery, making Ladder 4 25 
years old upon del;ivery of the new one.  The committee developed detailed 
specifications and a best value scoring criteria. (Part of Board packet) 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87460382770


 
 

 
There was a brief recess for members to go outside for a demonstration of 
the ladder truck capabilities. 
 

 
2. Minutes  

i. May 7, 2025 
 
Motion by Anderson to approve the minutes of 5/7/25. 
Second by Keushguerian 
Vote: 4/0/0 
 

3. Financial Reports  
i. Payroll Warrants #___ 

              
             Motion by Fraser to approve payroll warrant #53. 
             Second by Anderson 
             Vote: 4/0/0  
 

ii. Accounts Payable Warrants #___ 
              
             Motion by Fraser to approve accounts payable warrant #54. 
              Second by Hunter 
              Vote:4/0/0 
 
 

4. Citizen Comments and General Correspondence 
i. Coalition Against Bigger Trucks 

 
Fraser remarked that Federal and State regulations stated  6 axles could be 
100,000 lbs gross weight, so wasn’t sure exactly what this coalition was 
looking for.  Dorr thought it was just for support. 

 
5. Town Manager’s Report  

                                   
Dorr presented a written report to the Board.  Highlights include progress on the 
new webpage scheduled to go live May 29th.  Crosswalks and other stiping 
should happen tonight (5/21/25).  The Miles St project is pretty much wrapped 
up.  Some asphalt has been laid on Keene Woods.  There will be some ditching 
and shoulder work completed before the final coat is done.  The parking lot is 
pretty well done. Basin filters still need to be installed and the effectiveness of 
the check valves still need to be monitored.  Hunt mentioned that the meeting 
noted as June 21 for the Select Board should really be the 18th.  Dorr also shared 
that the Belvedere Rd closure is likely to begin May 29th.  Route 1 will be 



 
 

alternating lane traffic with a light through November.  He will update folks and 
the website as information is available.  He also reminded the Board about the 
three bids currently out now.  one for LED lighting upgrades for the fire house 
and Town office building, another for Insulation installation at the fire house and 
the third,  a roof replacement at the fire station.  All bids are due June 11 by 4:00 
p.m. 

 
 

6. Official Action Items  
i. Approve RFP: Ladder Truck  

               
Anderson commented: “it looked like it would be an excellent truck and the 
work was extremely thorough”. 
 

              Motion by Hunter to approve the RFP  for the Ladder Truck as presented. 
              Second by Anderson 
              Vote: 4/0/0 
 

                                       ii. Approve Donation: Fire Dept Equipment Reserve (Tentative) 
 

The Chief described the need for a replacement commercial laundry machine for 
the fire gear.  He had received several bids ranging between $6000 and $25,000.  
A grant for $5000 will be used to pay for a portion of the machine.  The machine 
selected is approximately $8000. 

 
Motion by Fraser to authorize up to $9000 out of the Fire Department  Reserve 
to purchase the gear extractor as presented.   
Second by Hunter 
Vote:4/0/0 
 
Grant funds will be deposited back into the reserve account. 

                                            
 
                                      iii. Accept Donation: Police Department Reserve  

              
Chief Warlick submitted a request to purchase 4 Range Trauma Aid Kits which 
would be used for life saving measures.  One for each patrol car and one for the 
department.  Kits will cost approximately $458 each. 

 
Motion by Fraser to authorize $2000 from the police reserve account to 
purchase trauma kits. 

       Second by Anderson 
       Vote: 4/0/0 
 



 
 

iv. Qualified Catering Permit: NCS LLC 
 

Motion by Fraser to approve the Qualified Catering Permit for a one time event 
at the YMCA. 

             Second by Anderson 
             Vote: 4/0/0 
 
                      

                                         v.  Public Works Committee Appointment 
                                           

Motion by Hunter to appoint Daryl Fraser and Andrea Keushguerian to serve on 
the Damariscotta-Newcastle public works working  group. 
Second by Anderson 
Vote: 4/0/0 

 
   vi. Midcoast Council of Governments Agreement (added to the agenda) 
 

Dorr presented an agreement for Administrative, Planning and Technical 
Services from the Midcoast Council of Governments(MCOG)  for the Boards 
consideration.  The intent is to provide site planning assistance to reduce the 
burden of the Planner. 
Martone shared how long a process it is to  review site plans and subdivisions in 
addition to completing ordinance reviews.  MCOG has the capacity to provide 
assistance for initial reviews which would allow Martone to shift his focus to 
cleaning up the current ordinances.  Dorr  added that there were funds in the  
current planning budget to pay the up to $16,000  fee that would cover hourly 
services provided. 
Hunter asked if there was currently a back log?  Martone answered not really but 
that recent projects, such as the Bangor Bank, the subdivision and some 
enforcement issues take a lot of time and he hasn’t been able to spend much 
time reviewing current ordinances, as a result. 
Anderson wanted clarification that the maximum dollars would be $16,000 and if 
there were no more projects, once the process became more efficient, that the 
assistant would be let go.  Dorr and Martone confirmed. 
 
Motion  by Fraser to authorize the Town Manager to sign the agreement 
between Damariscotta and MCOG as presented. 
Second by Anderson 
Vote: 4/0/0 

                                         
7. Select Board’s Discussion Items 

         None 
 

8. Executive Session 1 MRS §405(6)(F): Philbrook Fund Application Review 



 
 

          
          Motion by Fraser to move into executive session per 1MRS §405(6)(F) at 7:10 p.m. 
          Second by Anderson 
          Vote: 4/0/0 
 
                                    
                                   Motion by Fraser to go back to open session.   
                                   Second by Keushguerian 

         Vote: 4/0/0 
 
 

9. Possible Action: Philbrook Fund Allocation 
                                  No action 
 
 

III. Adjournment 
Motion by  Fraser to adjourn 
Second by Anderson 
Vote: 4/0/0 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town Manager’s Report 
May 31, 2025 

 
Department Updates 

● Administration 
○ New Domain - The new website was launched on May 29th and you may notice that it 

directs you to a new web domain, damariscotta.maine.gov.  Town emails will be 
transitioning as well, but that will be another week or two so we can prepare internally 
for that.  There is an update going out to the community next week that will also include 
a reminder/notice of the Town Meeting. 

○ Staff are utilizing their vacation time as we approach the end of the fiscal year.  We do 
not anticipate any impacts on the hours of operations, but will notice the public if that is 
an issue.   

○ Megan, the MCSPC intern, started her work this past week.  Following a couple days of 
orientation, Megan was at the office on Thursday and worked remote Friday.  She will 
be helping draft the Business Licensing Ordinance and is interested in assisting with the 
board’s strategic plan, creating a community resource database that can be used to 
correlate with the comprehensive plan, and if time allows, she’ll be looking into the 
benefits of a Downtown TIF District and the requirements of becoming a Tree City.   

○  FY 23 Financial Audit is finally wrapping up.  This delay was caused by a delay in 
receiving the school’s audit as a summary of those activities must be reflected in our 
report.  This is much later than normal and FY 24 has not been started in earnest, but 
will shortly.  We are hopeful that they’ll be able to catch up and deliver the FY 24 and FY 
25 reports before the town meeting in June of 2026.   

● Planning 
○ A meeting with LCRPC staff on Friday was helpful to bring back into focus some of the 

many projects we have in the works:  
■ DECD Housing Opportunity Grant (Dama/Newc) 
■ ARPA Housing Assessment Grant 
■ LCRCP DECD Utility Assessment Grant (one of a few towns included) 
■ Community Action Grant 

● Current RFPs - Insulation and LED Lighting  

http://damariscotta.maine.gov/


● Future CAG - HVAC Upgrade 
■ Comprehensive Plan Implementation  
■ PPI (Bus Rt 1) 
■ Strategic Plan for Select Board 

County staff are assisting in some capacity on many of these projects and we are 
grateful for their continued support.   

● Police 
○ Chief Warlick has hired a patrol officer filling the vacancy we had following Phil’s 

retirement.  The officer will be attending their 100-hr course training starting June 2 and 
will attend for two weeks.  Once completed, he will begin his FTO program and will 
attend the academy in January if all goes well.  

● Fire 
○ Chief Roberts had suggested applying for an MMA Safety Grant to purchase new traffic 

control equipment as the other cones and such were aging.  After talking with the 
Highway and Police Departments, we submitted a request and were awarded up to 
$3,000 to purchase HiViz safety gear/equipment and traffic control equipment.   The 
grant is a reimbursement program and the items to be purchased are typically in our 
budgets each year, but this will allow us to get a head on some of the old equipment.  

○ Ladder Truck, Roof Replacement, Insulation, and LED Upgrade RFPs are all out at the 
moment.  The ladder truck responses are due July 27 while the rest of the RFPs are due 
by June 11.   

● Public Works 
○ Mason Woodman will start work for the Town on June 2nd as our new laborer/driver.  

This will bring Public Works back to full staff as we look at our summer work plan.   
○ With the additional laborer and Jon completing most of the spring work, we should be 

able to focus on the park benches over the next two weeks.   
 
Capital Project Updates 

● Miles Street - Lamp posts and electrical work are the main items to be completed on Miles St.  
There are a couple punch list items as well like altering the checkdams, but all-in-all, the work 
was done well and with great cooperation and communication.  You’ll see the payment request 
on this week’s warrant, likely in two checks so we can withhold until the remaining items are 
complete.  

● Keene Woods - The base course of asphalt is complete and crews are working on ditching and 
driveways before applying the final surface course.   

● Chapman St Drainage - Our attorney has been reviewing old property plans and deeds to 
determine if she could create the necessary drainage easements without requiring a full survey.  
She is recommending that we strongly consider the full survey as the drainage system crosses 
multiple parcels and runs over 900’.  The project will require DEP permitting and we will look to 
work with a consultant that could ideally complete the survey work and permitting process.  
Once I get some pricing information I will share with the board and look for authorization to 
proceed if it is beyond what I am able to approve.   



 
Upcoming Meetings  

● Monday, June 2 @ 6:00 PM - Planning Board [Town Office] 
● Wednesday, June 4 @ 5:30 PM - Select Board Meetings [Town Office] 
● Thursday, June 5 @ 10:00 AM - Cemetery Trustees [Virtual] 
● Tuesday, June 10 @ 8:00 AM - 8:00 PM - Annual Town Meeting Referendum [Town 

Office] 
● Wednesday, June 11 @ 6:00 PM - ANNUAL TOWN MEETING Open Floor Meeting 

[Skidompha Library] 
● Wednesday, June 25 @ 5:30 PM - Select Board Meeting [Town Office] 















































































 
 

TOWN OF DAMARISCOTTA 
 
 

Surplus Property For Sale 
Sealed Bid 

 
The Town of Damariscotta has three (3) floats for sale.  The floats are approximately 6’ x 16’ 
and include hardware.  The floats are sold as is and may require some repairs prior to use.  
Preference will be given to responses that purchase all three, but it is not a requirement.  
Successful bidder(s) will be responsible for hauling/trainsporting the floats and must pick up the 
floats by Thursday, June 12, 2025.  The Town can assist with loading the floats on your trailer if 
necessary.        
 
Bidding Period: Sealed bids will be accepted until 4:00 PM Thursday May 29, 2025 

 
Bid Opening: Thursday, May 29, 2025 at 4:00 PM at the Town Office located at 21 School St 

 
Submit Sealed Bids to:  

Damariscotta Town Office 
Attn: Town Manager - Sealed Bid 

21 School St 
Damariscotta, ME 04543 

 



  



 
 







Contract # 2025-0081 

{P2296546.3} 1 

 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

For the Installation and Operation of 
Level 2 Electric Vehicle (EV) Chargers at Regional Service Centers 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, effective as of the date last signed below (the “Effective Date”), is made by and between Efficiency 
Maine Trust, an independent quasi-state agency of the State of Maine (“Trust”) and Town of Damariscotta, a municipality, 
federal tax identification number 01-6000131, with a place of business located at 21 School Street, Damariscotta, ME 04543 
(“Recipient”). The Trust and the Recipient are each a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties.” 
 
WHEREAS, on June 20, 2024, Efficiency Maine issued a Request for Proposals, RFP EM-033-2024, (the “RFP”) seeking 
applications for installation and operation of Level 2 EV charging equipment in response to the RFP, the Recipient 
submitted an application (the “Application”) for funding of a certain project to install Level 2 EV chargers (the “Project”) at 
65 Parking Lot Lane, Damariscotta, ME 04543.  
 
WHEREAS the Trust reviewed the Recipient’s application, found that it satisfies the minimum requirements of the RFP, and 
in reliance upon Recipient’s representations contained in the Application and subject to Recipient’s covenants and 
commitments contained in this Grant Agreement (the “Agreement”), has made an award in the amount of 80% of actual 
Project costs not to exceed $80,000 to the Recipient for implementation of the Project as contained in the Application (the 
“Incentive Award”). 
 
Acceptance of the terms of this Agreement is a condition of participation in this RFP.  Recipient shall sign this Agreement 
and return the signed document to Efficiency Maine.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and other good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree 
as follows. 
 
 
1. Incentive Award; Disbursements 
 
1.1 Efficiency Maine will provide Recipient an Incentive Award in the amount of $80,000 or 80% of the actual, final 

Project costs, whichever is less, to install and operate Level 2 chargers, consistent with the terms of Recipient’s 
application. The incentive award is to be used solely for eligible costs as described in the RFP for Level 2 EV 
charging station equipment consistent with the requirements of the RFP and Recipient’s Proposal. For purposes of 
calculating the value of the “80% of final Project costs,” Efficiency Maine will not consider costs in addition to those 
detailed in the proposal. Efficiency Maine will calculate the final incentive based on paid invoices and receipts for 
actual “as built” Project costs if they are less than what was proposed in the original application.  Efficiency Maine 
reserves the right to adjust the Incentive Award as necessary to maintain compliance with any limitations as set 
forth in the RFP.   
 

1.2 Efficiency Maine makes no commitment to provide an incentive prior to execution of this Agreement, and 
Recipient should not take any action with the expectation of receiving an Incentive Award until the Agreement has 
been executed.  

 
1.3 After Project completion, Efficiency Maine will disburse Incentive Award amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt 

of the Recipient’s invoices and other documentation that verify Project completion according to the terms of the 



Contract # 2025-0081 

{P2296546.3} 2 

award. If Efficiency Maine determines that the Level 2 EV charging equipment was not installed in a manner 
consistent with the Application or RFP, if ineligible equipment was installed, or if the installation is not consistent 
with applicable codes, Efficiency Maine may require changes before making payment. Efficiency Maine reserves 
the right to seek a complete refund, and Recipient shall be obligated to provided complete reimbursement to 
Efficiency Maine, for all Incentive Award amounts paid if, at any time, Efficiency Maine learns that, during the term 
described in Section 2.6, the approved equipment was not installed, was disconnected, was removed or relocated, 
was installed at a location that was not pre-approved by Efficiency Maine in writing, or is not available to the public 
at least as frequently as the business operating hours of the site host, unless such requirement was expressly 
waived by Efficiency Maine in writing. In no event during the useful life of the Level 2 EV charging equipment shall 
it be moved outside of the State of Maine. 

 
1.4 Recipient must provide copies of all invoices and other documentation that verify the costs of purchasing and 

installing the approved Level 2 EV charging equipment, including all materials, labor, and equipment discounts. 
Invoices must indicate a verifiable breakout of all equipment purchased for installation under this Agreement. 
Efficiency Maine has the right at any time to require invoices from the contractor to determine the price paid by 
the contractor to its supplier (including any discounts or incentives) for the equipment subsidized by the Incentive 
Award. 

 
1.5 It is a condition of disbursement of the Incentive Award that the Level 2 EV charging equipment, and any 

associated electrical components, be approved by the Underwriter’s Laboratory (UL).  
 
1.6 Efficiency Maine will not reimburse Recipient for any cost or expense that is an ineligible cost as set forth in the 

RFP, is contrary to this Agreement or is contrary to applicable law. Any expenditure by Recipient or commitment 
by Recipient to expend funds for the Project prior to the effectiveness of this Agreement is at Recipient’s risk. 
Reimbursement of Project funds expended or committed by Recipient prior to execution of this Agreement is at 
Efficiency Maine’s sole discretion. 

 
1.7 By submitting any invoice or request for reimbursement, Recipient is representing that the services or costs 

identified in the invoice or request for reimbursement have been provided or incurred and that such costs and 
expenses are proper and allowable under the RFP and this Agreement. By paying all or a portion of any invoice or 
request for reimbursement, Efficiency Maine does not waive its right to recover any payment or reimbursement 
later determined to be improper or not allowable under the RFP and this Agreement. 

  
1.8 Recipient must install the Project within the time period specified in the RFP. If Recipient fails to advise Efficiency 

Maine that the Project is complete or fails to provide required post-installation documentation within 30 days of 
Project installation, payment of the Incentive Award may be delayed or denied. 

 
1.9 Efficiency Maine reserves the right to make follow-up visits to Recipient’s equipment installation location or facility 

to ensure ongoing compliance with this Agreement. 
 
1.10 In the event funds from the Community Program Funds of the federal Charging and Fueling Infrastructure 

Discretionary Grant Program are suspended or otherwise unavailable from the federal government, Efficiency 
Maine reserves the right to suspend activity under this Agreement and suspend disbursements of Incentive 
Awards to Recipient. Efficiency Maine shall provide Recipient with written notice of the suspension and indicate 
the period of the suspension. At the conclusion of the suspension period, Efficiency Maine will rescind the 
suspension or terminate the Agreement unless otherwise agreed by both parties in writing. Efficiency Maine ‘s 
obligation to disburse Incentive Awards for eligible project expenses incurred prior to the notice of suspension is 
provided in Section 4B in this Agreement.  

 
 
2. Standards of Performance 
 
2.1  Recipient shall be solely responsible to (i) secure all necessary rights and licenses to install and operate the Level 2 

EV charging equipment at the approved host site location; (ii) acquire all equipment and materials necessary for 



Contract # 2025-0081 

{P2296546.3} 3 

complete performance of the Project; and (iii) furnish or arrange for qualified licensed contractors, suppliers, 
service providers and other personnel as necessary for the complete performance of the Project. Recipient shall, 
and shall cause its contractors to, perform all work and services in connection with the Project in a timely, 
professional, and workmanlike manner. 

 
2.2  Recipient shall, and shall ensure that its contractors, abide by and conform to applicable state, federal, and local 

laws, ordinances, rules, codes, regulations, and standards in the performance of the Project, including but not 
limited to those set forth in Rider A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Recipient is 
solely responsible for obtaining all permits, approvals, registrations, and licenses as may be required for 
installation and operation of the Level 2 EV charging equipment. 

 
2.3  Recipient is solely responsible for all costs, expenses, fees, taxes, and other assessments arising from or relating to 

the installation and operation of the Level 2 EV charging equipment, including energy charges. 
 
2.4  Recipient shall keep Efficiency Maine apprised of all material developments in connection with the Project. 

Efficiency Maine reserves the right to monitor Recipient’s performance of this Project in order to verify 
compliance. 

 
2.5  All equipment shall be new and unused (not refurbished). All equipment and associated electrical interconnections 

must be installed in a manner consistent with manufacturer recommendations and applicable code requirements. 
 
2.6  Recipient, or its successor in interest to the property, shall maintain and keep the Level 2 EV charging equipment in 

operation at the approved location for a minimum of five (5) years from the date of commissioning of the 
equipment. 

 
2.7  Recipient shall operate and use the Level 2 EV charging equipment funded in whole or in part with the Incentive 

Award only for the purposes intended by the RFP and this Agreement. 
 
2.8  Recipient shall ensure that the Level 2 EV charging equipment is available to the public, with appropriate signage, 

and that installation of the Level 2 EV charging equipment is compliant with applicable ADA accessibility standards.  
 
2.9  Recipient shall keep the Level 2 EV charging equipment in good repair and reasonably protected from damage and 

vandalism. 
 
2.10  Efficiency Maine does not make any representations of any kind regarding the results to be achieved by the 

Project. Efficiency Maine does not endorse, guarantee, or warrant any particular vendor, contractor, manufacturer 
or product, and it provides no warranties, express or implied, for any product or services. Neither Efficiency Maine 
nor its consultants are responsible for assuring that the design, engineering, or construction of the Project or 
installation of the Level 2 EV charging equipment is proper or complies with any particular laws, codes, or industry 
standards. Recipient is solely responsible for the design and implementation of the Project. 

 
3. Recipient Representations and Responsibilities 
 
3.1  Recipient acknowledges that the Incentive Award is provided for the purposes specified in the RFP and must be 

used in compliance with the RFP requirements and all applicable regulations. 
 
3.2  All requirements, restrictions and obligations regarding the use of Incentive Awards are deemed incorporated in 

this Agreement and Recipient agrees to comply with all such requirements, restrictions and obligations. Recipient 
represents and warrants that no portion of the Incentive Award will be used for any purpose not expressly 
approved in the Incentive Award. 

 
3.3  Recipient represents that it is eligible to receive the Incentive Award and that it is not suspended, debarred or 

disqualified from receiving state contracts, incentives, awards or other appropriations. 
 
3.4 Recipient represents that neither the Proposal, nor any document, report, or certification given by Recipient in 



Contract # 2025-0081 

{P2296546.3} 4 

connection with this Agreement or the Project contains any untrue statement of material fact or any knowing 
omission of material fact. Recipient shall notify Efficiency Maine of any material change in Recipient’s status or 
condition that could have a material adverse effect on Recipient’s ability to complete and implement the Project as 
described in Recipient’s Proposal and this Agreement. 

 
3.5  Recipient represents and warrants that the equipment and measures funded in whole or in part through the 

Incentive Award shall not be resold, transferred, or moved from the Project location during the term described in 
Section 2.6. 

 
3.6  Recipient acknowledges that a breach of any representation contained herein or the provision of any false or 

misleading information or knowing omission of material information in connection with the Project, whether by 
Recipient or its agents, may result in termination and revocation of the Incentive Award, require the immediate 
reimbursement of any Incentive Award amounts previously disbursed, and may result in Recipient’s suspension or 
debarment from participation in Trust programs. 

 
3.7 It is understood and agreed that the primary source of the Capital Incentive Award under this Agreement is the 

federal CFI Community Program Funds expressly allocated to the Trust under the Memorandum of Agreement 
between the Trust, MaineDOT, and the GEO dated February 16, 2023, as amended by a certain First Amendment 
to Memorandum of Agreement dated July 24, 2023.  

 
 
4. Indemnity; Damages Limitation 
 

4.1  Efficiency Maine’s sole obligation and total liability under this Agreement will be limited to paying the incentive 
amounts for approved projects completed in accordance with the RFP requirements and this Agreement. In no 
event shall Efficiency Maine or any of its trustees, employees or agents be liable to the Recipient or anyone 
claiming through the Recipient for any special, consequential, or incidental damages, including lost profits or lost 
business opportunities, or for any damages in tort (including negligence) caused by or resulting from any activities 
in connection with or associated with the RFP or the installation, operation or use of the equipment or measures 
for which the incentives are awarded. 

4.2  The Recipient shall protect, indemnify, and hold harmless Efficiency Maine and its trustees, employees, and agents 
from and against all third-party claims, liabilities, losses, damages, judgments, penalties, causes of action, costs 
and expenses (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees and expenses) asserted against or incurred by 
Efficiency Maine arising out of or relating to the Recipient’s participation in the Program, the work or services in 
connection with the Recipient’s project, or the installation, operation or use of the equipment or measures for 
which incentives are awarded. 

4.3  Nothing herein shall be construed to waive, release, or diminish any statutory or common law immunities of 
Efficiency Maine as a governmental entity, all of which are expressly retained. 

 
4A. Breach and Remedies. 
 
4A.1. The failure of Recipient to perform any of its obligations in accordance with this Agreement, in whole or in part, or 

in a timely or satisfactory manner shall be a breach.  
 
4A.2. In the event of a breach, the Efficiency Maine shall give written notice of breach to the Recipient. If the Recipient 

does not cure the breach, at its sole expense, within 30 days after the delivery of written notice, Efficiency Maine 
may exercise any of the remedies as described in this Section 4A. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement 
to the contrary, Efficiency Maine, in its discretion, need not provide notice or a cure period and may immediately 
terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, or institute any other remedy in this Agreement in order to protect 
the public interest of the State. 



Contract # 2025-0081 

{P2296546.3} 5 

 
4A.3. If Recipient is in breach under any provision of the Agreement and fails to cure such breach, Efficiency Maine, 

following the notice and cure period set forth in this Section 4A, shall have all of the rights and remedies set forth 
in this Section 4A in addition to all other rights and remedies set forth in this Agreement or at law.  

 
i. Termination for Breach:  In the event of Recipient’s uncured material breach, Efficiency Maine may 

terminate this Agreement or any part of this Agreement. 
 
a. Obligations and Rights:  To the extent specified in any termination notice, Recipient shall not incur 

further obligations or render further performance past the effective date of such notice, and shall 
terminate outstanding orders and subcontracts with third parties. However, Recipient shall complete 
all work and services not cancelled by the termination notice, and may incur obligations as necessary 
to do so within this Agreement’s terms. At the request of Efficiency Maine, Recipient shall assign to 
Efficiency Maine all of Recipient’s rights, title, and interest in and to such terminated orders or 
subcontracts. Upon termination, Recipient shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to 
protect and preserve property in the possession of Recipient but in which Efficiency Maine has an 
interest. At Efficiency Maine’s request, Recipient shall return materials owned by Efficiency Maine in 
Recipient’s possession at the time of any termination. Recipient shall deliver all completed work and 
deliverables and all work product and deliverables in process of completion to Efficiency Maine at its 
request. 
 

b. Payments:  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Efficiency Maine shall only pay Recipient for 
accepted work and services received as of the date of termination 

 
c. Damages and Withholding:  Notwithstanding any other remedial action by Efficiency Maine, Recipient 

shall remain liable to Efficiency Maine for any awarded damages sustained by Efficiency Maine in 
connection with any breach by Recipient, and Efficiency Maine may withhold payment to Recipient 
for the purpose of mitigating Efficiency Maine’s damages until such time as the exact amount of 
awarded damages due to Efficiency Maine from Recipient is determined. Efficiency Maine may 
withhold any amount that may be due Recipient as reasonably necessary to protect Efficiency Maine 
against loss. 

 
ii. Remedies Not Involving Termination:  Efficiency Maine, in its discretion, may exercise one or more of the 

following additional remedies, including during the pendency of any cure period: 
 
a. Suspend Performance:  Suspend Recipient’s performance with respect to all or any portion of the 

work and services pending corrective action as specified by Efficiency Maine. Recipient shall promptly 
cease performing all work and services and incurring costs in accordance with Efficiency Maine’s 
directive, and Efficiency Maine shall not be liable for costs incurred by Recipient after the suspension 
of performance. 
 

b. Withhold Payment:  Withhold payment to Recipient until Recipient corrects its work and services. 
 

c. Deny Payment:  Deny payment for work or services not performed or not authorized under this 
Agreement. 

 
d. Removal:  Demand immediate removal of any of Recipient’s employees, agents, or contractors from 

the Project whom Efficiency Maine deems unacceptable or whose continued relation to this 
Agreement is deemed by Efficiency Maine to be contrary to the public interest. 

 
4A.4. Efficiency Maine reserves all rights and remedies available at law or in equity in the event of a breach of this 

Agreement by Recipient.  Without limiting the foregoing, in the event that this Agreement is terminated as a result 
of the Recipient’s breach or default, the Recipient shall pay on demand all of Efficiency Maine’s costs, fees 
(including attorney and paralegal fees and disbursements, including such fees or disbursements arising in any 



Contract # 2025-0081 

{P2296546.3} 6 

bankruptcy case or proceeding), expenses, and damages of any kind incurred by or imposed on Efficiency Maine in 
connection with or as a consequence of Recipient’s breach of this Agreement. The various rights, remedies, 
options, and elections of Efficiency Maine in this Agreement are cumulative and not exclusive of any other right, 
remedy, or power allowed or available at law or in equity. 

 
4B Suspension or Termination due to Unavailable Funding 
 

If the CFI Community Program Funds are reallocated by the federal government or otherwise become unavailable 
to fund this Agreement, Efficiency Maine may, upon written notice, terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, 
without incurring further liability. Efficiency Maine shall, however, remain obligated to pay for all work and 
services that are delivered and accepted prior to the effective date of notice of termination, and this termination 
shall otherwise be treated as if this Agreement were terminated in the public interest. Beyond this obligation, the 
Trust will not be liable for any damages or other costs in the event of a suspension or termination due to 
unavailable funding. The Trust makes no commitment to pay the Incentive Award from other funds of Efficiency 
Maine, another agency’s funds, or state funds for any reason and the Recipient expressly waives any right to 
demand or receive payment from any such non-designated funds.   

 
5. Miscellaneous Provisions 
 
5.1  Data and Information in Support of the Program. Recipient authorizes access by Efficiency Maine to usage, 

utilization, energy, and performance information relating to the equipment funded in whole or in part by the 
Incentive Award where such information is available. Efficiency Maine may be required to report on the use and 
performance of the Level 2 EV charging equipment. Information from these reports may be made available to the 
public. Recipient agrees to cooperate with Efficiency Maine on such reporting and shall provide information 
related to the Incentive Award, this Agreement, and the Project as requested or required by Efficiency Maine to 
meet its obligation to provide accurate, complete, and timely information to the public, to meet the Program 
reporting requirements, and/or to comply with state or federal law or regulation. Recipient agrees to allow 
independent, third-party verification of Project performance and energy utilization as may be requested by 
Efficiency Maine. 

 
5.2  Site Visits. Efficiency Maine and its representatives have the right to make site visits at reasonable times to review 

Project progress, performance, and operation.  
 
5.3  Independent Capacity. Recipient is an independent party and is not an agent or representative of Efficiency Maine. 

Recipient shall be solely responsible for the performance of the Project and the conduct of its employees, agents 
and contractors. In no event shall Efficiency Maine be deemed an employer, partner, or agent of Recipient or any 
of Recipient’s personnel. Recipient shall select its own vendor or contractor to provide the equipment and perform 
the work contemplated by this Project, provided they are licensed and authorized to do business as may be 
required under any applicable law. In no event shall Efficiency Maine be responsible or liable for any act or 
omission of Recipient, its employees, agents, contractors, or vendors. Efficiency Maine reserves the right to 
prohibit specific vendors or contractors from participation in projects funded through this RFP. 

 
5.4  Records. Recipient shall make and retain all project records (including financial records, progress reports, service, 

equipment, and material orders, invoices, evidence of payment, and payment and reimbursement requests) for a 
minimum of five (5) years following the expiration or termination of this Agreement. Recipient shall permit 
Efficiency Maine or its authorized representatives to examine such records and to interview any officer or 
employee of Recipient or any of its contractors regarding the work performed under this Agreement. Recipient 
shall furnish copies of all such records upon request. 

 
5.5  Taxes. Recipient shall be solely responsible for the determination and payment when due of all taxes that may be 

due in connection with the Incentive Award and the Project, including, without limitation, income, property, excise 
and use taxes. Incentive Awards received by Recipient may be taxable. Recipient must provide its tax identification 
number for payment processing. Incentive Award payments in excess of $600 made to unincorporated entities will 
be reported by Efficiency Maine on IRS Form 1099-MISC. 

 



Contract # 2025-0081 

{P2296546.3} 7 

5.6 The Trust does not make any representations of any kind regarding the results to be achieved by the Project. The 
Trust does not endorse, guarantee, or warrant any vendor, contractor, manufacturer, or product, and it provides 
no warranties, express or implied, for any product or services. Recipient is solely responsible for the 
implementation of the Project. 

 
5.7  Governing Law; Entire Agreement. The Agreement between Recipient and Efficiency Maine shall be governed in all 

respects by the laws, statutes, and regulations of the State of Maine. Any legal proceeding instituted by Efficiency 
Maine or Recipient regarding this Project shall be brought in State of Maine administrative or judicial forums. The 
Agreement, taken together with the Application, the terms of the RFP, the Incentive Award and Recipient’s 
acceptance of the Incentive Award constitutes the entire Agreement of the parties and supersedes any prior 
discussions, understandings, and agreements, whether oral or in writing. The Agreement may be amended only in 
writing signed by the parties. This Agreement, and the rights and obligations hereunder, shall inure to the benefit 
of the Parties and their permitted assigns. No waiver shall be deemed to have been made by any of the Parties 
unless expressed in writing and signed by the waiving party. 

  

 

[SIGNATURE BLOCK ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

 
  



Contract # 2025-0081 

{P2296546.3} 8 

SIGNATURES 
 
Town of Damariscotta 
 
 
________________________________     Date:_____________________ 
(Signature) 
 
Printed Name: __________________________________________ 
 
Title:  __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Efficiency Maine Trust 
 
 
___________________________     Date: ______________________ 
Michael D. Stoddard 
Executive Director 
       



Expense Detail Report

ALL Months
ALL Accounts11:11 AM

Damariscotta
Page 1

05/31/2025

Trans RCB/ Current Unexpended
Date Per Type Jrnl Description--- Wrnt Check# Vendor------ Budget Debits Credits Balance

576,965.00 510,104.37 16,375.75 83,236.3801 - ADMIN
45,890.00 32,088.04 0.00 13,801.9602 - ASSESSING

192,440.00 125,772.59 46.65 66,714.0603 - PLAN&DVLPMT
178,770.00 168,081.29 0.00 10,688.7104 - SOLID WASTE
98,730.00 74,670.91 900.00 24,959.0905 - MUNI BLDG
25,000.00 20,125.00 0.00 4,875.0007 - LEGAL SVCS
14,625.00 14,225.21 0.00 399.7908 - INSURANCE
7,400.00 7,906.74 0.00 -506.7409 - ANIMAL CNTRL

796,993.00 770,000.13 68,248.63 95,241.5010 - HIGHWAY
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0011 - LED CONV/PRC

862,640.00 752,950.66 39,961.63 149,650.9712 - POLICE DEPT
161,235.00 128,152.06 2,924.35 36,007.2913 - FIRE DEPT

2,700.00 1,395.14 0.00 1,304.8614 - EMA
167,030.00 146,793.68 0.00 20,236.3215 - HYDRANTS

6,000.00 6,955.97 0.00 -955.9716 - STREET LIGHT
2,200.00 2,696.80 0.00 -496.8017 - TRAFFIC LIGH

10,950.00 0.00 0.00 10,950.0018 - ADULT ED
3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.0019 - COMMUNITY SR
1,400.00 1,140.00 0.00 260.0022 - BISCAY BEACH

630,896.00 630,896.00 0.00 0.0024 - COUNTY TAX
18,000.00 18,620.12 8,546.00 7,925.8825 - CONTINGENCY

171,692.00 171,692.01 0.00 -0.0126 - PROV. AGENCY
59,380.00 44,857.62 20.79 14,543.1727 - CEMETERY

201,978.00 201,975.00 0.00 3.0028 - DEBT SERVICE
630,000.00 0.00 0.00 630,000.0029 - CAPITAL RSRV

0.00 9,843.26 37.00 -9,806.2630 - OVERLAY
0.00 2,695.00 0.00 -2,695.0033 - HARBOR
0.00 825.52 0.00 -825.5240 - SHELLFISH

3,758.00 0.00 0.00 3,758.0051 - BISCAY CAPT
0.00 5,659.00 0.00 -5,659.0052 - CDBGrants
0.00 36,873.00 0.00 -36,873.0055 - SR/GRANTS

16,524.00 0.00 0.00 16,524.0056 - PARKING LOT
269,224.00 1,503.04 0.00 267,720.9657 - FIRE STA RSV
45,859.00 34,323.94 0.00 11,535.0658 - HWY FAC'S

372,287.00 0.00 0.00 372,287.0059 - FIRE TRUCK
4,613.00 0.00 0.00 4,613.0060 - FIRE EQPT

85,658.00 0.00 0.00 85,658.0061 - P.D RESERVE
58,482.00 0.00 0.00 58,482.0062 - MUNI BLDG



Expense Detail Report

ALL Months
ALL Accounts11:11 AM

Damariscotta
Page 2

05/31/2025

Trans RCB/ Current Unexpended
Date Per Type Jrnl Description--- Wrnt Check# Vendor------ Budget Debits Credits Balance

63 - HWY EQUIP CONT'D
44,527.00 24,152.50 0.00 20,374.5063 - HWY EQUIP
7,738.00 5,500.00 0.00 2,238.0065 - CEMETERY RSR

54,000.00 56,318.00 0.00 -2,318.0069 - HWY TRUCK
404,636.00 0.00 0.00 404,636.0070 - SIDEWALK
13,061.00 0.00 0.00 13,061.0072 - TOWN CLOCK

100,000.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.0073 - REVALUATION 
23,170.00 11,395.00 0.00 11,775.0074 - TECHNOLOGY
20,118.00 0.00 0.00 20,118.0075 - LANDFILL

995,863.00 1,489,941.03 0.00 -494,078.0382 - WATERFRONT 
20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.0089 - PHILBROOK
6,500.00 3,409.86 0.00 3,090.1491 - GENERAL ASS.

977,255.00 4,610,370.35 0.00 -3,633,115.3597 - SCHOOL

8,389,187.00 10,123,908.84 137,060.80 -1,597,661.04Final Totals



Revenue Detail Report

ALL Months
ALL Accounts11:13 AM

Damariscotta
Page 1

05/31/2025

Account------------ Current Uncollected
Date Jrnl Desc--- Budget Debits Credits Balance

7,138,280.00 11,974.59 8,424,284.40 -1,274,029.8101 - ADMINISTRATION
100,700.00 110.00 86,336.12 14,473.8803 - PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

8,000.00 0.00 12,120.00 -4,120.0012 - POLICE DEPARTMENT
0.00 0.00 1,800.00 -1,800.0027 - CEMETERY 

14,000.00 47,706.57 588,536.29 -526,829.7232 - STATE REIMBURSEMENTS
0.00 0.00 4,220.00 -4,220.0040 - SHELLFISH
0.00 0.00 230,000.00 -230,000.0047 - LINCOLN CTY AFFOR HOUS'G ARPA
0.00 500.00 500.00 0.0049 - MISC SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
0.00 0.00 5,659.00 -5,659.0052 - CDBG Grant DuJardin
0.00 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.0061 - POLICE DEPARTMENT RESERVE

4,875.00 138.95 2,169.30 2,844.6591 - GENERAL ASSISTANCE
0.00 0.00 1,200.00 -1,200.0092 - CEMETERY TF
0.00 2,130.95 237,263.60 -235,132.6597 - SCHOOL

7,265,855.00 62,561.06 9,600,088.71 -2,271,672.65Final Totals


	06-04-2025 SB Agenda
	05-21-2025 SB minutes
	Town Manager’s Report May 31, 2025
	Barn Door Baking Co Liquor License Application renewal 25-26
	Barn Door Baking Co Chiefs letter 2025
	Seacoast catering @ ymca
	Oysterheadpizza -entertainment permit
	Midcoast Humane agreement
	Copy of Sealed Bid (2025) - Floats_
	doc06219220250531072915
	Agreement_TownofDamariscotta
	FY 25 YTD May 31_Expenditures
	FY 25 YTD May 31_Revenue

